
 

 
1 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
MONDAY, 4 SEPTEMBER 2023 AT 10.00 AM 
 
THE EXECUTIVE MEETING ROOM - THIRD FLOOR, THE GUILDHALL, 
PORTSMOUTH 
 
Telephone enquiries to Anna Martyn - Tel 023 9283 4870 
Email: Democratic@Portsmouthcc.gov.uk 
 
If any member of the public wishing to attend the meeting has access requirements, please 
notify the contact named above. 
 
Membership 
 
Councillor Emily Strudwick 
Councillor Stuart Brown 
Councillor George Madgwick 
 
The reserve member is Councillor Russell Simpson. 

 

 
(NB This agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting). 
 
Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on 
the Portsmouth City Council website: www.portsmouth.gov.uk  
 
Deputations by members of the public may be made on any item where a decision is 
going to be taken. The request should be made in writing to the contact officer (above) by 
12 noon of the working day before the meeting, and must include the purpose of the 
deputation (for example, for or against the recommendations). Email requests are 
accepted. 
 

A G E N D A 
  
 1   Appointment of Chair  

  
 2   Declaration of interests  

  
 3   Licensing Act 2002 - Review Application - It's Mustard, 116 Albert Road, 

Southsea, PO4 0JS (Pages 3 - 214) 

Public Document Pack

http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/


 
2 

 

 

  The purpose of this report is for the committee to consider and determine a 
review application pursuant to section 52 of the Licensing Act 2003 ("the Act") 
and in respect of the following premises: 
  
It's Mustard, 116 Albert Road, Southsea, PO4 0JS 
  
The Sub-Committee is requested to determine the review application.  

Members of the public are permitted to use both audio visual recording devices and 
social media during this meeting, on the understanding that it neither disrupts the 
meeting nor records those stating explicitly that they do not wish to be recorded. 
Guidance on the use of devices at meetings open to the public is available on the 
Council's website and posters on the wall of the meeting's venue. 
 
Whilst every effort will be made to webcast this meeting, should technical or other 
difficulties occur, the meeting will continue without being webcast via the Council's 
website. 
 
This meeting is webcast (videoed), viewable via the Council's livestream account at 
https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785 

 
 

https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785


Page 1 of 5 

 
REPORT TO: LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE  4 September 2023 

REPORT BY: 
 

LICENSING MANAGER 
 

REPORT AUTHOR: 
 

 DEREK STONE 

Licensing Act 2003 - Review Application - It's Mustard, 116 Albert Road, 
Southsea, PO4 0JS 
 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
The purpose of this report is for the committee to consider and determine a review 
application pursuant to section 52 of the Licensing Act 2003 ("the Act") and in respect 
of the following premises: 
 
It's Mustard, 116 Albert Road, Southsea, PO4 0JS. 
 
The holder of the premises licence is recorded as Miss Joanne Mary Johnstone.  
 

2. THE REVIEW APPLICANT 
 
The application and grounds for the review are attached as Appendix A and has been 
submitted by Lorraine Astill Regulatory Services, and relates to the following licensing 
objective: 
 

 Prevention of public nuisance 
 
This follows engagement with the venue in relation to noise and the serving of a  
noise abatement notice and further noise nuisance. 
 

3. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
116 Albert Road became the Artisan Kitchen and Bar and was granted a Premises 
Licence in March 2022. In December 2022 it became It's Mustard with Joanne 
Johnstone becoming the Premises Licence holder and Designated Premises 
Supervisor. The premises are owned by Adam Stringer and has 30 covers. 
 
A copy of the current premises licence is attached as Appendix B.  
 
In accordance with the act and prescribed regulations, public notice of the review 
application was given both at the premises and also at the Civic Offices.  In addition, a 
notice of the review application was also posted on the council website. 
 
 The review application was also served on the responsible authorities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Page 2 of 5 

 
 
4. 

 
REPRESENTATIONS BY RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES AND OTHER PERSONS 
 
A representation from Regulatory Services has confirmed that on the 11th April 2023, 
a noise abatement notice was served in relation to the venue following public noise 
nuisance having been witnessed. Following this, four contraventions of this notice 
occurred on the 22nd April, 6th May, 3rd June and 1st July.  
 
On the 11th July 2023 notification of this review was given to the premises licence 
holder and owner. Despite this notice, noise has continued at the premises and on two 
further occasions since the review notice was served, a public noise nuisance was 
witnessed on the 22nd July and 5th August. 
 
No additional representations were received from responsible authorities however, 
twenty two representations have been received, in the main from local residents 
complaining about noise from the venue. Several representations have mentioned 
intimidation following the commencement of the review proceedings, hence the 
removal of names and addresses from the representations. The unredacted copies 
are available to the panel if required. There are seven support representations. 
All representations are attached as Appendix C. 
 

5. POLICY AND STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
When determining the review application, the committee must have regard to: 
 

 Promotion of the licensing objectives which are; 
 

o Prevention of crime and disorder 
o Public safety 
o Prevention of public nuisance 
o Protection of children from harm 

 
 The Licensing Act 2003; 
 
 The adopted Statement of Licensing Policy;  

 
 Judgments of the High Court, (your legal adviser will give you guidance should 

this become necessary); 
 

 The current statutory guidance issued by the Home Secretary in accordance 
with section 182 of the Act;  

 
 The representations, including supporting information, presented by all the 

parties; and 
 
 The human rights of all the parties concerned to ensure both a fair and 

balanced hearing  
 

 The public sector equality duty requiring public bodies to have due regard to 
the need to: 
 

Page 4



Page 3 of 5 

 
 
 

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct prohibited by the Act; 
 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share protected 
characteristic and people who do not share it; and 
 

 Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
people who do not share it. The protected characteristics are as follows: 
 

 i) age, ii) disability, iii) gender reassignment, iv) pregnancy and maternity v) 
race - this includes ethnic or national origins, colour or nationality, vi) religion or 
belief - this includes lack of belief, vii) sex and viii) sexual orientation. 

 
 

The Statutory Guidance provides advice in relation to the consideration of review 
applications. In particular, members should have regard to the following: 
 
Paragraph 11.1 - "The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing 
premises licences and club premises certificates represent a key protection for 
the community where problems associated with the licensing objectives occur 
after the grant or variation of a premises licence or club premises certificate." 
 
Paragraph 11.2 - "At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club 
premises certificate, a responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the 
licensing authority to review the licence or certificate because of a matter arising at 
the premises in connection with any of the four licensing objectives." 
 
Paragraph 11.10 - "Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have 
concerns about problems identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give 
licence holders early warning of their concerns and the need for improvement, and 
where possible they should advise the licence or certificate holder of the steps they 
need to take to address those concerns. A failure by the holder to respond to such 
warnings is expected to lead to a decision to apply for a review. Co-operation at a 
local level in promoting the licensing objectives should be encouraged and reviews 
should not be used to undermine this co-operation." 
 
Paragraph 11.16 - "The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing 
authority which it may exercise on determining a review where it considers them 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives." 
 
In reaching a decision upon a review application, the guidance offers assistance to 
the licensing authority as follows: 
 
Paragraph 11.17 - "The licensing authority may decide that the review does not 
require it to take any further steps appropriate to promote the licensing objectives. In 
addition, there is nothing to prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning 
to the licence holder and/or to recommend improvement within a particular period of 
time. It is expected that licensing authorities will regard such informal warnings as an 
important mechanism for ensuring that the licensing objectives are effectively  

Page 5



Page 4 of 5 

 
 
promoted and that warnings should be issued in writing to the licence holder." 
 
Paragraph 11.18 - "However, where responsible authorities such as the police or 
environmental health officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement – 
either orally or in writing – that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to 
address concerns, licensing authorities should not merely repeat that approach and 
should take this into account when considering what further action is appropriate. 
Similarly, licensing authorities may take into account any civil immigration penalties  
which a licence holder has been required to pay for employing an illegal worker." 
 
Paragraph 11.19 - "Where the licensing authority considers that action 
under its statutory powers is appropriate, it may take any of the following 
steps: 
 
• modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new 
conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by 
reducing the hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular times; 
 
• exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude 
the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within the 
incidental live and recorded music exemption); 
 
• remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider 
that the problems are the result of poor management; 
 
• suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
 
• revoke the licence." 

 
Paragraph 11.20 - "In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that 
licensing authorities should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes 
of the concerns that the representations identify. The remedial action taken should 
generally be directed at these causes and should always be no more than an 
appropriate and proportionate response to address the causes of concern that 
instigated the review." 
 
Paragraph 11.21 - "For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the 
possibility that the removal and replacement of the designated premises supervisor 
may be sufficient to remedy a problem where the cause of the identified problem 
directly relates to poor management decisions made by that individual." 
 
Paragraph 11.22 - "Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct 
reflection of poor company practice or policy and the mere removal of the 
designated premises supervisor may be an inadequate response to the problems 
presented. Indeed, where subsequent review hearings are generated by 
representations, it should be rare merely to remove a succession of designated 
premises supervisors as this would be a clear indication of deeper problems that 
impact upon the licensing objectives." 
 
 
 

Page 6



Page 5 of 5 

 
 
 
 
Paragraph 11.23 - "Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of 
conditions and exclusions of licensable activities may be imposed either permanently 
or for a temporary period of up to three months. Temporary changes or suspension of 
the licence for up to three months could impact on the business holding the licence 
financially and would only be expected to be pursued as an appropriate means of 
promoting the licensing objectives or preventing illegal working. So, for instance, a 
licence could be suspended for a weekend as a means of deterring the holder from  
allowing the problems that gave rise to the review to happen again. 
 
However, it will always be important that any detrimental financial impact that may 
result from a licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and proportionate to the 
promotion of the licensing objectives and for the prevention of illegal working in 
licensed premises. But where premises are found to be trading irresponsibly, the 
licensing authority should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough action 
to tackle the problems at the premises and, where other measures are deemed 
insufficient, to revoke the licence." 
 
A copy of the Statement of Licensing Policy, current statutory guidance and the Act 
has been supplied to each of the Members’ Rooms and further copies will be 
available for reference at the hearing. 

 
6. APPEALS 

 
An appeal against any decision may be made within 21 days of the premises licence 
holder being notified of the licensing authority’s decision to a Magistrates’ court.  An 
appeal may be made by: 
 

• The applicant for the review; 
• the holder of the premises licence or club premises authorisation; or 
• any other person who made relevant representations in relation to the 

application. 
 
The decision of the committee, following the review hearing, will not have 
effect until the end of the period allowed for appeal, or until any submitted 
appeal is disposed of. 
 
 
 

7. APPENDICES 
 

A. Copy of the redacted review application together with any supporting 
documents 

 
B. Copy of the current authorisation to include location plan 

 
C. Copies of any other relevant representations received 

 
D. Evidence re additional noise breaches 22nd July and 5th August 

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Version April 2012 3 

 

 

- Official - 

 

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 

Name and address 

Telephone number (if any) 

Email address (optional) 

 
(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT 

Name and address 

Telephone number (if any) 

E-mail address (optional) 

 
This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 

Please tick one or more boxes √ 
1) the prevention of crime and disorder  

2) public safety  

3) the prevention of public nuisance  

4) the protection of children from harm  

 
Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2) 

 
This application has been made by Regulatory Services (a responsible authority applicant) on the basis 
that the premises licence holder has failed to uphold the prevention of public nuisance licensing 
objectives. 
 
This has been evidenced by: 
Causing public nuisance to nearby residents which has resulted in the service of a statutory Noise 
Abatement Notice under the Environmental Protection Act 1990 by Regulatory Services on 11th April 
2023. Contraventions of this notice have been witnessed on 22nd April 2023, 6th May 2023, 3rd June 
2023 and 1st July 2023 
 

Lorraine Astill - Principal Regulatory Services Officer 
Portsmouth City Council 
Civic Offices 
Guildhall Square 
Portsmouth 
PO1 2AZ 

 

 

yes 

Page 11



Version April 2012 4 

 

 

- Official - 
 

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read 
guidance note 3) 

The Legislative Reform (Entertainment Licensing) Order 2014 deregulates live music and 
recorded music. The Act removes the licensing requirements for live music and recorded music 
where: - 

• There is a premises licence or club premises certificate in place permitting ‘on sales. 
• The premises are open for the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the 

premises. 
• Live or recorded music is taking place between 8am and 11pm 
• If the music is amplified live music or recorded music (e.g., DJs or a disco for example), 

the audience consists of no more than 500 people. 

Under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 " a responsible authority or any other person can 
apply for a review of a premise licence". 

Upon a Review of the premises licence the Licensing Authority can determine that existing 
conditions on the premises licence relating to live or recorded music will apply even between 
8am and 11pm. 

Its Mustard has a premise licence which allows the business to open from 08:00 to 23:00hrs 7 
days a week. The Premise Licence Holder and Designated Premise Supervisor is Miss Joanne 
Johnstone, (appendices 1). 
 
The director and owner of Its Mustard Ltd is Mr Adam Stringer, (appendices 2, 3, and 4). 
 

The Premise 

116 Albert Road was previously a retail shop that sold pianos. In February 2021 under 
Permitted Development the premise was notified by City Planners that they would not need 
planning permission for the change of use to an A3 (café). The premise has been renovated 
and now has a glass roof covering an open corridor to the rear courtyard area (see plan and 
photographs - appendices 5 and 6). Since December 2022, the premise has been operated as 
a kitchen and bar called Its Mustard. 

Its Mustard is located within Albert Road which is a night-time economy area. This area is also 
a mixture of commercial and residential properties. The premise has residential 
accommodation on the first floor which belongs to the owner of Its Mustard. Residential 
accommodation is also located either side of the owner's property on the first floor.  

Complaint history 

Its Mustard Bar & Kitchen opened on 10th December 2022 (see appendices 7). Subsequently 
to this, complaints were received by Regulatory Services from the 6th February 2023 and are 
still continuing to be received. 
 
Regulatory Services have four complaints from separate residents that live in the vicinity of Its 
Mustard. (23/00307/ENI, 23/00315/ENI, 23/00730/ENI, 23/00734/ENI). 
 

A letter (appendices 8) was sent to the Premise Licence Holder/DPS - Joanne Johnstone, Its 
Mustard, 116 Albert Road, Southsea, PO4 0JS on the 9th February 2023. Ms Johnstone did 

 

Page 12



Version April 2012 5 

 

 

- Official - 

not respond to this correspondence. 
 
On 11th March 2023 a complainant left a voice message at 23:15hrs stating that it is kicking off 
at Its Mustard and would like to log their call. 
 
On 29th March 2023 the investigating officer visited It's Mustard to follow up on outstanding 
food hygiene legal requirements and to discuss the noise complaints. The officer requested 
that Mr Stringer contacted her with details of the glazing for the glass roof and to inform her if a 
noise volume limiting device had been installed at the premise. Ms Johnstone was present at 
the premises and said that she would be in contact. No further information was provided after 
this visit. 
 
On 8th April 2023 the duty out of hours officer received three calls from different local residents 
concerning loud music coming from Its Mustard. (See appendices 9). 
 
On the 8th April 2023 a statutory noise nuisance was witnessed by loud music coming from Its 
Mustard. The duty officer approached the bar to speak to DPS. The DPS not present but owner 
Adam Stringer was. Mr Stringer was under the influence of drink and would not listen to the 
officer's request to reduce the volume of the music. He made reference to loud music coming 
from other bars on Albert Road. It was explained to him that the music was travelling through 
the structure of the building and causing a disturbance to a local resident. 
 
Mrs Johnstone was contacted on 11th April 2023 as a complaint had also been received 
concerning an alarm sounding in Its Mustard. It was requested that she visited the bar to 
silence the alarm. This was complied with.  
 
In relation to the statutory nuisance being witnessed on 8th April 2023, and under the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 Sc 79 (g) a noise abatement notice was served on Joanne 
Johnstone       ref 12/LWA/23, the notice and the 
covering letter was sent by post and email on 11th April 2023. (See appendices 10, and 11). A 
noise  abatement notice was also served on Mr Adam Stringer ref 11/LWA/23 (see appendices 
12 and 13 
 
On 13th April 2023 Ms Johnstone left a voice message saying she did not have an indication 
on how bad the situation was only other than the other letter she had received and from the 
meeting with the officer. She claimed that they had tried to work with the complainant. She 
made allegations that they have gone above and beyond what is required, and they feel that 
the local authority is making it difficult to operate the bar as they have only been open for 4 
months. She claimed that other bars in the area were making more noise than It's Mustard.  
 
The investigating officer called Ms Johnstone back on 14th April 2023. Ms Johnstone made 
allegations that the complaints have not been dealt with properly as she had only received one 
letter prior to the noise abatement notice being served and one visit from an officer where a 
discussion took place after a food inspection. She reiterated that she had not been given the 
opportunity to deal with the noise issue and she was not in the right frame of mind as her friend 
had committed suicide. During this conversation the investigating officer advised Ms Johnstone 
that there was right of appeal for the noise abatement notice but Ms Johnstone said she did not 
believe that they would be successful in their claim so they would not be appealing. Ms 
Johnstone said that they had cancelled all entertainment for the weekend. The investigating 
officer advised Ms Johnstone that the premise was not suitable for regulated entertainment 
provided by a DJ as the bass penetrates through the structure of the building and also the 
glass roof does not help contain the noise.  
 

Page 13



Version April 2012 6 

 

 

- Official - 

 
 
Breach of abatement notice 22nd April 2023 (1) 
 
On 22nd April 2023 at 14:57hrs one of the complainants left a voice message on the night 
noise phone reporting loud music from Its Mustard. A further call was made by the same 
complainant at 18:16hrs stating the music level was getting louder. The officer visited the 
complainant at 19:27hrs and witnessed a contravention of the noise abatement notice. The 
officer did not visit the bar but noticed that there was a DJ set up in the premise when he 
walked past.  
 
A letter was sent to Joanne Johnstone (premise license holder and DPS) and Adam Stringer on 
25th April 2023 (see appendices 14 and 15) notifying her that a contravention of the noise 
abatement notice had been witnessed. Joanne Johnstone called the investigating officer in 
response to the receipt of this correspondence and requested a meeting with the manager as 
she felt that she had been misinformed. A meeting was arranged 27th April 2023 to discuss the 
noise complaints and issues raised.   
 
Meeting at Its Mustard on 27th April 2023 
 
A meeting took place at Its Mustard 116 Albert Road, Southsea on 27th April 2023. Allegations 
were made by both Mr Stringer and Ms Johnstone that the business had not been helped by 
the local authority. During this meeting Mr Stringer requested assistance with setting noise 
levels. It was explained to him that they might not agree with the noise levels set as the volume 
may be lower than they would like and also this would not give them a defense if formal action 
was to be taken. It was agreed that an appointment would be made with the complainant and 
themselves so that noise levels could be set. 
 
On 28th April  2023 one of the complainants was contacted, and it was agreed that they would 
participate with setting noise levels with Its Mustard. The date of Thursday 4th May at 10:00am 
was proposed. 
 
Further complaints received by Regulatory Services  
 
Three voice messages were left by different complainants on 29th April 2023 in relation to loud 
music from a DJ at Its Mustard, which started at 16:30hrs. 
 
One of the complainants said that due to the volume of the music they are unable to remain in 
their home. 
 
 A further message was left by one of the complainants at 20:58hrs stating that the music was 
very loud and could be heard in every room of their house.  
 
There was no officer available to witness the noise on this occasion.  
 
The duty out of hours officer received a call from one of the complainants on 30th April 2023. 
The officer visited the complainant at 19:16hrs and could hear a low-level continuous bass 
beat. The noise stopped shortly after the officer had arrived.  
 
Correspondence concerning dates for the setting of noise levels at Its Mustard 
 
Mr Stringer (the owner of the business Its Mustard) sent an email on 2nd May 2023 stating that 
they have used sound insulation in the weak areas in the wall that was pointed out to him 

Page 14



Version April 2012 7 

 

 

- Official - 

during the meeting on the 27th April 2023. He said that he had had a meeting with his sound 
engineers seeking advice on the best way to reduce the noise levels and it was hoped that 
once it had been installed the music would be consistent and not cause a nuisance to 
neighbours'. He proposed a date of Saturday 20th May 2023 for the sound test to be carried 
out as they needed to spend time decorating for the Kings Coronation.  
 
The investigating officer replied to Mr Stringers email and informed him that due to upcoming 
planned events at Its Mustard complaints could be received and potential evidence collated for 
further breaches of the noise abatement notices, if a statutory noise nuisance is witnessed. The 
officer indicated that it was crucial to try to set some noise levels prior to these events and 
asked if Mr Stringer or Ms Johnstone were available on Thursday 4th May 2023.  
 
Mr Stringer responded to the officer's email on 3rd May 2023 by stating that he had other 
commitments with his printing business in London and could not spare the time to be available 
on Thursday 4th May 2023 as he was already committed to meeting deadlines. He said that 
Ms Johnstone had been on vacation and only arrived back that evening and it was vital that 
they are able to prepare for the Kings Coronation on the Saturday. He did however say that all 
equipment being purchased for future events would be submitted to PCC before the week 
ending 12th May 2023 and that installation will take place no later than 19th May 2023 when 
testing of the equipment can take place.  
 
The investigating officer replied to Mr Stinger's email dated 3rd May 2023 and advised to 
reduce the volume of the music and bass being provided by the DJ for the Kings Coronation 
celebrations. 
 
On the 4th May 2023 Mr Stringer sent an email to the Public Protection email inbox requesting 
an appeal of the noise abatement notices. Mr Stringer was informed by email that the time 
period for the right to appeal for the notice had expired. Details were also provided in a 
separate email to Mr Stringer detailing the difference in legislation between the Licensing Act 
and the Environmental Protection Act.  
 
Further complaints received by Regulatory Services 
 
On 5th May 2023 a complainant left a voice message at 19:53hrs requesting that her call be 
logged as there was heavy bass coming from Its Mustard. She said that the noise started at 
19:30hrs and it could be heard throughout her flat.  
 
Breach of noise abatement notice 6th May 2023 (2) 
 
A visit was made to the complainant's property at 18:30hrs on 6th May 2023. Bass music was 
travelling through the structure of the building and was clearly audible throughout the 
complainant's home. The level of the music was causing a statutory nuisance which was in 
breach of the noise abatement notices served on Its Mustard Ltd and Joanne Johnstone.  
 
A call was made to Joanne Johnstone to inform her that high bass levels had been witnessed 
emanating from Its Mustard and it was requested that the volume of the DJ be reduced. Ms 
Johnstone said that she would do this. 
 
A further visit was made to the complainant on 6th May 2023 at 22:05hrs upon entering the 
complainant's courtyard loud music could be heard coming from the rear of Its Mustard. 
Vibrations from the music in commercial premise (Its Mustard) below could be felt under foot. 
The music could be heard throughout the complainant's property and there was not a room 
within their premise where they could escape the noise. The level of the music was causing a 

Page 15



Version April 2012 8 

 

 

- Official - 

statutory nuisance. Noise from customers in the courtyard at Its Mustard could also be heard. 
From within the complainants home a female's voice was heard shouting "last orders".  
 
On 13th May 2023 a letter (appendices 13) was sent to both Ms Joanne Johnstone and Mr 
Adam Stringer informing them of the contravention of the noise abatement notice. The letter 
was sent via email and by post. 
 
Ms Johnstone replied to the correspondence on 16th May 2023 in response to the 
contravention of the noise abatement notice. She apologised for the "level of the music not 
being how we require it" and said that they are doing everything that they can to resolve the 
problem. She said that their sound equipment is on its way. 
 
Further complaints received by Regulatory Services 
 
The complainant left a voice message at 22:11hrs on the out of hours mobile reporting that 
there has been music on 13th May 2023 and the bass beat could be heard throughout their 
property.  
 
A complainant contacted Regulatory Services on 16th May 2023 notifying the service that Its 
Mustard have a DJ planned for Saturday 20th May 2023. The liaison officer notified the 
complainant that the investigating officer was on leave and that no one would be available to 
monitor the noise on this date.  
 
On 20th May 2023 the complainant left a voice message at 15:37hrs stating that the DJ is 
playing loud music which can be heard throughout their property.  
 
On 25th May 2023 an email was sent to Ms Joanne Johnstone; she was again advised that the 
sound insulation between the commercial and residential uses on the first floor was not 
sufficient for the type of entertainment that they are providing. It was recommended that they 
cancelled the entertainment that they had planned for the 4th June 2023 until mitigation 
measures had been put in place. The officer also requested that they be notified once the 
business had received their new sound system.  
 
A voice message was left by the complainant at 13:59hrs and 22:17hrs on 27th May 2023 (see 
appendices 19) reporting that there had been loud music from a DJ playing again at Its 
Mustard. They said that it could be heard in every room of their property. 
 
On 2nd June 2023 a voice message was left by the complainant at 20:19hrs stating that 
extremely loud music is playing again at Its Mustard, and it could be heard throughout their 
property.  
 
Breach of noise abatement notice 3rd June 2023 (3) 
 
The duty out of hours officer received two calls from different residents on Saturday 3rd June 
2023 concerning loud music emanating from Its Mustard (see appendices 20). One of residents 
reported that the front door to the premises was open and music could be heard above the 
traffic on Albert Road. 
 
An officer visited one of the complainants at 20:50hrs on Saturday 3rd June 2023. Loud music 
could be heard from the rear of Its Mustard as the officer entered the complainant's home. 
Lyrics to the tracks being played were clearly audible and the volume of the music was causing 
a statutory nuisance in breaching the noise abatement notice.  
 

Page 16



Version April 2012 9 

 

 

- Official - 

A telephone call was made to Joanne Johnstone to notify her of the complaint, but her phone 
was turned off.  
 
On 7th June 2023 a letter (see appendices 21 & 22 )  was sent to both Joanne Johnstone and 
Adam Stringer in relation to the contraventions of the noise abatement notice witnessed by the 
officer on 3rd June. No response was received by Regulatory Services in relation to this 
correspondence.  
 
 
Further complaints received by Regulatory Services 
 
On 10th June 2023 a complainant left a voice message at 17:40hrs. They said that the DJ 
started at 16:45hrs (see appendices 23) and that it was really loud as usual. The music can be 
heard everywhere in their home. 
 
Breach of noise abatement notice 1st July 2023 (4)  
 
Three complaints were received by local residents in relation to loud music emanating from Its 
Mustard on 1st July 2023.  
 
Noise monitoring equipment had been placed within the fourth complainants' home as they had 
notified Regulatory Services prior to the event that Its Mustard had advertised on Facebook 
and Instagram that a DJ was playing at 116 Albert Road on 1st July (see appendices 24).  
 
Upon analyzing the recordings made by the complainant, the loud music in particular heavy 
bass was present within the complainant's home from 15:55hrs to 22:38hrs (last recording 
made), therefore causing a statutory nuisance for approximately six hours.  
 
CONCLUSION  
 
The Responsible Authority has instigated this review due to concerns that, despite giving clear 
guidance and warnings as regards to complying with licensing objectives, the licence holder 
has continued to operate in contravention of prevention of a public nuisance.  
 
The statutory guidance issued in accordance with section 182 of the LA03 offers the following 
relevant guidance which the Licensing Authority must have regard to when considering a 
review application: 
 
Paragraph 11.10  
Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about problems identified 
at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders early warning of their concerns 
and the need for improvement, and where possible they should advise the licence/certificate 
holder of the steps they need to take to address those concerns. A failure by the holder to 
respond to such warnings is expected to lead to a decision to apply for a review. Co-operation 
at a local level in promoting the licensing objectives should be encouraged and reviews should 
not be used to undermine this co-operation.  
 
Paragraph 11.18  
Where responsible authorities such as the environmental health officers have already issued 
warnings requiring improvement - either orally or in writing - that have failed as part of their own 
stepped approach to address concerns, licensing authorities should not merely repeat that 
approach and should take this into account when considering what further action is appropriate.  
 
 

Page 17



Version April 2012 10 

 

 

- Official - 

Paragraph 11.20  
In deciding which powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing authorities should, so far as 
possible, seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that the representations 
identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed at these causes and should 
always be no more than appropriate and proportionate response to address the causes of 
concern that instigated the review.  
 
Where the Licensing Authority considers that action under its statutory powers is appropriate, it 
may take any of the following steps:  
• Modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new conditions or any 
alteration or omission of an existing condition).  
• Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence.  
• Removal of the Designated Premises Supervisor.  
• Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months  
• Revoke the licence 
 
Having regard to the facts presented within this review, it is clear that the premises licence 
holder has consistently failed to act on advice of the other responsible authorities in terms of 
complying with the premises licence and has continued to breach the requirements of the 
LA03. 
 
It is therefore recommended that the most appropriate step for the Licensing Sub-
Committee to consider is to impose the following condition on the current premises 
licence: 
 

1. (a)      The provisions of Section 177A of the Licensing Act 2003 relating to live 
and recorded music no longer apply in respect of this licence, and 

 
(b)      The provision of any regulated entertainment consisting of a performance 

of live music and/or playing of recorded music shall be excluded as a 
licensable activity under the scope of this licence. 

 

Page 18



Version April 2012 11 

 

 

- Official - 

 

Please tick √ yes 
Have you made an application for review relating to the premises before? No 

If yes, please state the date of that application 
 Day Month Year 
         

 
If you have made representations before relating to the premises, please state what 
they were and when you made them 

Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



The Licensing Manager 

Portsmouth City Council 

Civic Offices 

Guildhall Square        8th August 2023 

Portsmouth 

Hants 

PO1 2AL 

By email to:  

To the Licensing Authority, 

Its Mustard, 116 Albert Road, Southsea, Portsmouth, PO4 0JS 

I write with reference to the above and confirm that I live within the vicinity of ‘It’s Mustard’ 

I have been made aware there is a review of the licence. 

I’ve been a resident in Southsea for fifteen years, living in Wilson Grove and have frequented 

Albert Road on numerous occasions. 

Equally when the wind is blowing south westerly I can here the abundance of noise on Fridays 

and weekends.  

I have regularly visited ‘ It’s Mustard ‘particularly on Sundays because my children enjoy the 

roast dinners immensely also the convivial atmosphere.  

Adding to that I’ve also attended Friday & Saturdays for several beverages and have enjoyed 

the eclectic mix of old and younger people which has always been smiley and welcoming.  

Comparing to other establishments on Albert Road, in my opinion the staff are 

excellent,accommodating and friendly Which can’t be said for other restaurants and bars where 

you have undesirables being loud,aggressive and violent.  

I confirm that I have had no cause for concern in relation to these premises and support the 

Premises Licence Holder in this review. 

For the avoidance of doubt I have no concerns regarding the premises and can clarify that I 

have never witnessed sales to drunken persons, seen any drunkenness, anti-social behaviour, 

disturbances or crime occurring.   

Should you require any further information please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Yours faithfully, 

S A WALL, 

3 Wilson Grove, 

Southsea, 

PO5 1PD  

APPENDIX C

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C

REP ONE

Page 45



Page 46



REP TWO

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



 

- Official - 

REP 13 

 

Lorraine As�ll  

Licensing Manager                                                                                                                        

Authorised Officer and on behalf                                                                                               

Of the Head of service                                                                                                                 

   REF     23/02516/LAREVI                                                                                                                  

                                                                                                                                                                  

                                                                                                                                                         Tel; 
    

Dear Lorraine  

We are deeply concerned about the noise situa�on arising from Its Mustard 116 Albert Road.  

Our concerns are with the extra loud music from the bar / garden, and customers loud voices and 
swearing from the garden. Our neighbours have small children, and this language is unacceptable.  

We have in the past had a noise issue with the wedgwood rooms, the wedgwood rooms manager 
has visited us in a professional and understanding manner, he then took ac�on and fited extra 
soundproof doors to eliminate the problem, however we find the manager from its mustard 
unapproachable and inconsiderate to our requests. We have walked the length of Albert Road on a 
Saturday night, and the only noise spilling out into the street from a pub / venue, is from its 
mustard.   

Whatever the outcome we feel there will be repercussions, as the noise is only one issue from the 
owner of its mustard, threats have been made to our neighbours and landlord, whereupon the police 
have been called.  

This has been happening for some months now, we feel if this con�nues our only op�on will be to 
move, a�er living here for about 18 years we find this situa�on unacceptable.  

We sincerely hope the license is revoked a�er the hearing, and we can all try to resume to normal 
life.  

Yours sincerely  

 

  

 

 

 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



 

- Official - 

REP 14 
 
From:  
Sent: Wednesday, August 2, 2023 7:29 AM 
To: Licensing Shared Email  
Subject: It's Mustard @ 116 Albert road 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
I believe that Lorraine Astill from the noise abatement team has passed on my email to her about an 
incident regarding the licencee (a woman I know as Jo) of the above premises, who is targeting me. 
 
I have had 3 encounters to date, the first was a couple of months ago on a particularly noisy 
Saturday night when I spoke directly to the premises owner (a man I know to be called Adam) 
outside my property.  I asked him if he could imagine what it was like to live next door to a beer 
garden.  Jo came out of the premises, stormed over to where I stood at my front door shouting at 
me that I was putting her licence in jeopardy and who the F*** did I think I was! 
 
The second incident was as I reported to Lorraine by email that I also reported to the police online 
and in Sunday last Jo and Adam came out at 9:41 pm and she shouted at my property (my front door 
was open to let my cat out) "Here we are, we've finished now so don't bother complaining" then 
went back into the beer garden together and started shouting and laughing at the top of their 
voices. 
 
I am being targeted by her, if not both of them and as much as I would like to attend the hearing, I 
feel I am unable to as I fear the repercussions and/or reprisals and ask my name to be withheld. 
Life at my property since December last year (their opening night) has been miserable, the noise 
from the music has been horrendous every weekend and then the loud voices shouting and 
swearing in the beer garden is obscene. 
 
My very first encounter with Adam happened on March 27th last year when he verbally abused me 
for blocking his parking space, a little after that he verbally abused my neighbour at his car, whilst his 
children were with him, which I witnessed first hand.  He, Adam, was extremely aggressive to us 
both and intimidating, as has Jo had been on all 3 occasions with me. 
 
Please, please, please help. 
 
Kindest regards 

 
 
 

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 75



On 25 March at 16:23, a day of yet more repetitive noise, I registered a complaint with the
council. Since then, the noise has been an almost weekly occurrence, with negative impacts to
my mental wellbeing and inability to relax or sleep. I do not see how anyone could put up living
with such consistent noise pollution. It makes this property uninhabitable.

Diary

Date Time (ish) Noise & Impact of Noise

11/02/23 12:00-00:00 Non-stop. Thumping bass at high volume, audible in every area
of my house. TV and headphones don’t mask it. Increasingly
loud voices in the smoking area as the night continues. Prevents
me from sleeping.

25/02/23 12:00-00:00 Non-stop. Thumping bass at high volume, audible in every area
of my house. TV and headphones don’t mask it. Increasingly
loud voices in the smoking area as the night continues. Prevents
me from sleeping.

11/03/23 14:00-00:00 Loud noise from 14:00 with excessive noise from 15:45 non-stop.
Can hear it in my bedroom and all other areas of my flat, insanely
loud by midnight. Insane thumping, repetitive beats, shrieking.
Prevents me from sleeping.

18/03/23 15:00-23:30 As above.

25/03/23 15:45-23:30 As above.

01/04/23 N/A The live music event is advertised on social media but I cannot
put up with another chaotic evening so I make plans to go and
stay with my parents in West Sussex.

07/04/23 19:30-23:00 Not a bottomless brunch event, but music audible throughout the
property, particularly in the bedroom and living room.

08/04/23 15:00-02:00 Non-stop noise, excessive thumping bass and house music.
Audible everywhere in my house. Prevents me from sleeping. I
think this is the night Lorraine first told them to turn it down and
the owner was extremely rude. If so, the music decreases
substantially at about 23:00, but then picks back up by 23:30.
Seems to be retaliation to being told to turn it down as music and
loud voices continue until about 02:00.

22/04/23 15:00-23:00 Non-stop. Thumping bass at high volume, audible in every area
of my house. TV and headphones don’t mask it. Increasingly
loud voices in the smoking area as the night continues.

29/04/23 15:00-23:00 Non-stop. Thumping bass at high volume, audible in every area
of my house. TV and headphones don’t mask it. Increasingly
loud voices in the smoking area as the night continues.

Page 76



06/05/23 15:00-23:00 Loud funk and bass music at high volume, audible in every area
of my house, lyrics audible, cannot relax. At times the music
does decrease but still audible with TV on.

20/05/23 16:00-20:00 Loud funk and bass music at high volume, audible in every area
of my house, lyrics audible. Presume the music continued until
23:00 but cannot confirm this as I left to attend an event.

27/05/23 15:00-23:00 Loud bass music at high volume, audible in every area of my
house, lyrics audible, cannot relax. Audible with TV on. Prevents
me from sleeping.

03/06/23 16:00-23:00 Loud bass music at high volume, audible in every area of my
house, lyrics audible, cannot relax. Audible with TV on. Prevents
me from sleeping.

10/06/23 16:45-23:00 Loud funk and bass music at high volume, audible in every area
of my house, lyrics audible, cannot relax. Audible with TV on.
Prevents me from sleeping. 1 x MP4 download from Instagram
Stories attached.

01/07/23 15:00-00:45 Loud funk and bass music at high volume, audible in every area
of my house, lyrics audible, cannot relax.Exceptionally loud from
15:58 and onwards. Prevents me from sleeping. Super loud beer
garden voices. Extremely draining and headache-inducing,
nowhere in my flat I can go to be away from the noise, audible
above television on max volume and the windows shut, audible
through headphones as well. Music stops at 23:00 but loud
voices continue until 00:45 ish.

08/07/23 14:00-23:00 Loud house music at high volume, audible in every area of my
house, lyrics audible, cannot relax. Audible with TV on. Prevents
me from sleeping.

15/07/23 18:30-23:30 I make plans to be away for the day so come back to noise
already underway. Shouting and shrieking from the beer garden,
thumping bass throughout every room in my flat. Nowhere I can
go in my flat to be away from this noise. I make plans to leave at
20:00-23:30 to get away from the noise. Once I had returned, the
music had stopped but there were still loud voices from the beer
garden, preventing me from sleeping.

22/07/23 14:00-23:00 Loud funk and house music at high volume, audible in every area
of my house, lyrics audible, cannot relax. A little more intermittent
than other nights, but still audible with TV on.

05/08/23 14:00-23:00 Loud funk and house music at high volume, audible in every area
of my house, lyrics audible, cannot relax. Live saxophone being
played. Audible with TV on and headphones on. Prevents me
from sleeping. 3 x MP4 download from Instagram Stories
attached. Bass vibrations coming through walls.

Page 77



Page 78



 

- Official - 

APPENDIX D 

Addi�onal Noise breaches 

It's Mustard  Albert Road, Southsea 
 

22nd July  

 

call from the comp at 18:10 re loud music from Its Mustard.  
 
On driving towards Waverly Road I no�ced that the front door to Its Mustard was open. I parked in 
Waverley Road and entered the complainants at the rear of  albert road. Upon entering the 
complainants property loud music could be heard from Its Mustard. No music was audible from the 
Sound Studio 
Bass beat from music being played at Its Mustard was audible upon entering the complainants 
property.  
I entered the living room and noted that no music was coming from the Wedgewood Rooms. 
The volume of the bass was up and down but when it was loud it could be heard above the traffic on 
Albert Road. The bass beat was audible throughout the complainants property and there was no 
where that they could escape the noise and was having a significant impact upon the complainants 
home. 
The music changed and the lyrics to Le Freak could be heard word for word. 
 

 

5th August  

Noise monitoring installed within the complainants property 

Analysis of recordings statutory nuisance being  caused in breach of noise abatement no�ces 
04/08/23 
11:41 calibra�on  
11:43 se�ng up of equipment 
 
05/08/23 
13:59 comp announcing date, �me and place of recording with window closed. Bass beat audible. 
Lyrics audible but unable to iden�fy track. customers hear laughing LAeq 41dB 63Hz 50dB 125Hz 
46dB. 
 
14:25 comp announcing date, �me and place of recording, window closed. People noise, music 
audible.  Saxophone audible with low background music, passing motorbike LAeq 36dB 63Hz 46dB 
125Hz 29dB 
 

Page 79



 

- Official - 

14:28 comp announced recording again because bass has kicked in. Saxophone audible. LAeq 44dB 
63Hz 63dB 125Hz 47dB people noise, comp moving around. Lyrics audible but unable to iden�fy the 
track, girls screeching.  
 
15:01 comp announcing date, �me and place of recording, window closed. All doors shut in the flat. 
bass beat audible. LAeq 38dB 63Hz 46dB 125Hz 38dB. Peak 63Hz 66dB.  Lyrics audible but unable to 
iden�fy the track. Rain audible dripping outside. Noise from customers talking. 
 
18:07 comp announcing date, �me and place of recording, window closed, all doors shut in flat. Bass 
audible, LAeq 48dB 63Hz 63dB 125Hz 48dB females heard talking. 
 
18:37 comp announcing date, �me and place of recording, window closed. Lyrics audible " I want 
your love, I need your love" Chic, " all night long" LAeq 45dB 63Hz 56dB 125Hz 46dB customers 
talking. 
 
19:31  comp announcing date, �me and place of recording, window closed, all doors shut. Customers 
talking. Impact noise, Bass audible LAeq 42dB 63Hz 49dB 125Hz 40dB 
 
19:39  comp announcing date, �me and place of recording, window closed, all doors shut. Comp said 
bass ramped up so recording again. Female voices heard talking. Bass audible LAeq 43dB 63Hz 60dB 
125Hz 46dB 
 
19:42 comp saying bass went quiet and has now picked up again. Customers voices, heavy bass beat. 
Bass level peak 63Hz 63dB LAeq 44dB 63Hz 60dB 125Hz 46dB 
 
20:47 comp announcing date, �me and place of recording, doors and windows closed, customer 
noise, music heard, some lyrics audible "its my life". Some impact noise and bass level increasing 
Peak 63Hz 64dB LAeq 42dB 63Hz 52dB 125Hz 40dB 
 
21:32 comp announcing date, �me and place of recording, doors and windows closed, customers 
voices, bass beat, possible washing machine spinning, ketle boiling bass beat heard above the nose 
from the ketle. 
 
22:46 comp announcing date, �me and place of recording, doors and windows closed customers 
talking, possible washing machine spinning.  
 
07/08/23 equipment collected  
 

Page 80



 

- Official - 

Appendices 
1. Premises licence - Joanne Johnstone (Appendix B) 
2. Council tax record for 116 Albert Road 
3. Companies House details for Sign of the Times (GB) Ltd 
4. Companies House details for It's Mustard Ltd 
5. 116 Albert Road - Planning Application drawing  
6. Instagram picture of glass roof - 6th May 2023 
7. Instagram picture of date of opening - 10th December 2022 
8. Initial letter to Joanne Johnstone regarding noise complaints 
9. Instagram advertisement for DJ on 8th April 2023 
10. Noise abatement notice for Joanne Johnstone 
11. Letter with noise abatement notice for Joanne Johnstone 
12. Noise abatement notice for It's Mustard Ltd 
13. Letter with noise abatement notice for It's Mustard Ltd 
14. First breach of abatement notice letter for Joanne Johnstone 22.04.23 
15. First breach of abatement notice letter for It's Mustard Ltd 22.04.23 
16. Facebook advertisement for DJ on 6th May 2023 
17. Second breach of abatement notice letter for Joanne Johnstone 06.05.23 
18. Second breach of abatement notice letter for It's Mustard Ltd 06.05.23 
19. Facebook advertisement for DJ 27th May 2023 
20. Facebook advertisement for DJ 3rd June 2023 
21. Third breach of abatement notice letter for Joanne Johnstone 03.06.2023 
22. Third breach of abatement notice letter for It's Mustard Ltd 03.06.2023 
23. Facebook advertisement for 10th June 2023 
24. Facebook advertisement for 1st July 2023 
25. Transcript of noise monitoring equipment installed in complainant's property 
26. Service request details 23/00315/ENI 
27. Service request details 23/00307/ENI 
28. Service request details 23/00734/ENI 
29. Service request details 23/00730/ENI 
30. Service request details 23/00811/ENA 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 83



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



APPENDIX 5

P
age 93



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 5

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 6

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 7

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 9

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 16

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 19

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 20

Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 23

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 24

Page 133



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 25

Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214


	Agenda
	3 Licensing Act 2002 - Review Application - It's Mustard, 116 Albert Road, Southsea, PO4 0JS
	Appendix A - Review application
	Appendix B - Premises Licence
	Appendix C - Rep in support 1 - Bustle and Bertie
	Appendix C - Rep in support 2 - Chalmers K
	Appendix C - Rep in support 3 - Creatiques Bridal Boutique
	Appendix C - Rep in support 4 - Pearce A
	Appendix C - Rep in support 5 - Pearce R
	Appendix C - Rep in support 6 - Wall S
	Appendix C - Rep in support 7 - West M
	Appendix C - Rep against 1
	Appendix C - Rep against 2
	Appendix C - Rep against 3
	Appendix C - Rep against 4
	Appendix C - Rep against 5
	Appendix C - Rep against 6
	Appendix C - Rep against 7
	Appendix C - Rep against 8
	Appendix C - Rep against 9
	Appendix C - Rep against 10
	Appendix C - Rep against 11
	Appendix C - Rep against 12 page 1
	Appendix C - Rep against 12 page 2
	Appendix C - Rep against 13
	Appendix C - Rep against 14
	Appendix C - Rep against 15
	Appendix D - Evidence of additional noise breaches
	List of further appendices
	Appendix 2 - Council Tax record
	Appendix 3 - Companies House (Sign of the Times)
	Appendix 4 - Companies House (It's Mustard Ltd)
	Appendix 5 - Planning application drawing (page 1)
	Appendix 5 - Planning application drawing (page 2)
	Appendix 6 - Glass roof picture
	Appendix 7 - Opening night (Instagram picture) 10.12.2022
	Appendix 8 - Initial letter to Joanne Johnstone
	Appendix 9 - Advertisement for DJ 08.04.2023
	Appendix 10 - Noise abatement notice for Joanne Johnstone
	Appendix 11 - Letter with noise abatement notice for Joanne Johnstone
	Appendix 12 - Noise abatement notice for It's Mustard Ltd
	Appendix 13 - Letter with Noise abatement notice for It's Mustard Ltd
	Appendix 14 - 1st breach of abatement notice letter to Joanne Johnstone 22.04.2023
	Appendix 15 - 1st breach of abatement notice letter to It's Mustard Ltd 22.04.2023
	Appendix 16 - Facebook advertisement for DJ 06.05.2023
	Appendix 17 - 2nd breach of abatement notice letter to Joanne Johnstone 06.05.2023
	Appendix 18 - 2nd breach of abatement notice letter to It's Mustard Ltd 06.05.2023
	Appendix 19 - Facebook advertisment for DJ 27.05.2023
	Appendix 20 - Facebook advertisement for DJ 03.06.2023
	Appendix 21 - 3rd breach of abatement notice letter to Joanne Johnstone 03.03.2023
	Appendix 22 - 3rd breach of abatement notice letter to It's Mustard Ltd 03.06.2023
	Appendix 23 - Facebook advertisement for 10.06.2023
	Appendix 24 - Facebook advertisement for 01.07.2023
	Appendix 25 - Transcript of noise monitoring equipment
	Appendix 26 - 26.	Service request details 23/00315/ENI
	Appendix 27 - Service request details 23/00307/ENI
	Appendix 28 - Service request details 23/00734/ENI
	Appendix 29 - Service request details 23/00730/ENI
	Appendix 30 - Service request details 23/00811/ENA




